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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

 

 Plaintiff, by his attorneys, on behalf of himself and all others 

similarly situated, makes the following allegations based on the investigation 

of counsel and based upon information and belief, except as to those 

allegations specifically pertaining to himself and his counsel, which are based 

on personal knowledge. 

 

 

 
BEHRAD MANOUCHEHRI, on 

behalf of himself and all others 

similarly situated, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

 vs. 

 

THE ESTEE LAUDER COMPANIES 

INC. and ARAMIS INC., 

  

 Defendants.                                                            

 
 

 
Case No.  __________ 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 
 
 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMAND 
 

'14CV1064 KSCJM
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NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. Defendant, The Estee Lauder Companies Inc. (together with 

Defendant ARAMIS INC. “Estee Lauder” or “Defendants”) is a self-

proclaimed “pioneer in the cosmetics industry”
1
 with more than $10.2 billion 

in annual sales. More than 44 percent of those sales are generated by Estee 

Lauder’s skin care products, which constitutes its “most profitable product 

category.”
2
 

2. Estee Lauder enjoys such significant sales, in part because of its 

false, deceptive, and/or misleading representations that products from its LAB 

Series skincare for men collection, specifically MAX LS Overnight Renewal 

Serum, MAX LS Instant Eye Lift, MAX LS Light Moisture Lotion, and MAX 

LS Age-Less Face Cream (collectively “MAX LS Products”) have certain age-

negating effects on the human skin. 

3. Estee Lauder’s primary marketing message for the MAX LS 

Products focuses on the discovery and promotion of “Sirtuin technology,” 

represented to be a “Molecular Age-Less complex” which Defendants 

represent helps the skin “boost its natural ability to counteract visible signs of 

aging,”
3
 while also promoting a “noticeably more lifted, firmer and resilient 

look”
4
 to help “skin look younger, longer.”

5
 According to Estee Lauder’s 

marketing, MAX LS Products are “powered by technology, backed by 

scientific research, and reinforced by years of success in addressing men's 

skincare and grooming needs.”
6
 Estee Lauder claims that its MAX LS products 

                                              
1
 Estee Lauder’s 2013 10-K SEC Filing at 2. 

2
 Estee Lauder’s 2013 10-K SEC Filing at 26. 

3
 See MAX LS Product Inserts. 

4
 Id. 

5
 See MAX LS Product line. 

6
 http://www.labseries.com/get_started/index.tmpl. 
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bring consumers the most “high-tech, high-performance skincare for men”
7
 

including “the latest in anti-aging.”
8
 

4. Estee Lauder supports its efficacy promises for the MAX LS 

Products with misleading references to Sirtuin technology, clinical tests, and 

scientific research. 

5. Defendants’ marketing strategy promoting the efficacy of the MAX 

LS Products has been developed to be uniform across the entire product line 

and echoes across all forms of MAX LS Product marketing and advertising. 

That is, regardless of whether the advertising for the MAX LS Products appear 

in print (magazine or newspaper), on Estee Lauder’s website, on third-party 

retailer websites, on product brochures, product displays, or product packaging 

at the point of sale, Estee Lauder repeats substantially the same thematic 

marketing message and efficacy claims for the entire line of MAX LS 

Products. 

6. In addition to making uniform efficacy claims, Estee Lauder’s MAX 

LS marketing strategy is also designed to create a uniform look and high-end 

theme for all of its MAX LS Products. For example, Estee Lauder uses the 

same images, graphics, and modern color scheme across its entire product 

advertising and packaging and rarely differentiates between MAX LS products 

in its advertising materials, frequently referring just to “Sirtuin technology” 

and the “molecular age-less complex.” The MAX LS marketing campaign also 

frequently includes more than one MAX LS Product in the advertisements and 

Estee Lauder presents all the MAX LS Products as providing the same anti-

aging efficacy based on the same purportedly cutting-edge Sirtuin technology. 

                                              
7
 Id. 

8
 Id. 
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7. This “high end” theme further deceived consumers by leading them 

to believe MAX LS is more effective than lower-cost moisturizers. Utilizing an 

artificially high price to falsely signal quality is an effective and well-

documented marketing technique.
9
 Since consumers do not have a method for 

objectively evaluating the quality of cosmetic products, they are especially 

likely to rely on price as a signal of quality when making such purchases.
10

 

8. Estee Lauder’s public filings, such as its 2013 10-K, reaffirm this 

uniform marketing strategy, by admitting that each of its product lines, 

including MAX LS, “has a single global image, and is promoted with 

consistent logos, packaging and advertising designed to enhance its image and 

differentiate it from other brands.”
11

 

9. As explained more fully herein, Estee Lauder has made, and 

continuous to make, deceptive, false, and/or misleading claims and promises to 

consumers about the efficacy of its MAX LS Products in a pervasive, nation-

wide marketing scheme that confuses and misleads consumers about the true 

nature of the MAX LS Products. In reality, the MAX LS Products do not, and 

cannot, live up to the efficacy claims made by Estee Lauder because none of 

their ingredients can provide the promised results. 

                                              
9
 See Jukti K. Kalita et al., Do High Prices Signal High Quality? A Theoretical 

Model and Empirical Results, 13 J. PROD.& BRAND MGMT. (4)279 (2004) (Ex. 

1). 
10

 Erich Kirchler, Florian Fischer, & Erik Holzl, Price and its Relation to 

Objective and Subjective Product Quality: Evidence from the Austrian Market, 

33 J. CONSUM. POLICY 275, 278 (2010) (noting consumers tend to rely on price 

as a measure of quality when purchasing cosmetics and pharmaceuticals, 

which are complex because their “components or ingredients and their working 

mechanisms are difficult to understand and intransparent for laypersons,” and 

observing only a very weak correlation between price and objective measures 

of product quality among health and cosmetics products: r=.06) (Ex. 2) 
11

 Estee Lauder’s 2013 10-K SEC Filing at 3. 
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10. Nevertheless, Estee Lauder designs its marketing and advertising 

campaign for the MAX LS Products to include indicia of scientific research 

and discovery and promises of specific results which misleads and deceives 

consumers. In sum, Estee Lauder dupes consumers with false and misleading 

promises that “Sirtuin technology” is essentially a fountain of youth that is 

scientifically proven to “counteract visible signs of aging”
12

 and to help “skin 

look younger, longer.”
13

  Estee Lauder has built an entire marketing platform 

upon these misleading statements and profits at the expense of the consumers. 

11. The faux imprimatur of science and academic research further 

deceives consumers, as consumers rely upon experts when selecting products 

with inscrutable qualities.
14

 

12. Indeed, the reason consumers purchase MAX LS Products is to 

obtain the unique results that Estee Lauder promises for its MAX LS Products. 

But the real secret to the success of the MAX LS product line is not some 

magic “Sirtuin technology,” but a slick and deceptive marketing campaign. 

13. Estee Lauder’s financial reports reveal that the company commits an 

overwhelming amount of its resources to marketing. According to its public 

filings, in 2013, Estee Lauder spent nearly $2.8 billion on marketing while it 

only spent $103.6 million on research and development—a ratio of more than 

twenty-seven to one. 

14. As a result of Estee Lauder’s pervasive and deceptive marketing 

campaign, consumers across the country, including Plaintiff and the other 

                                              
12

 http://www.labseries.com/products/6959/index.tmpl#. 
13

 See MAX LS Product line. 
14

 See Oliver Gergaud, Karl Storchmann, & Vincenzo Verardi, Expert Opinion 

and Quality Perception of Consumers: Evidence from New York City 

Restaurants, AAWE Working Paper No. 108 (2012) (noting and summarizing 

research demonstrating consumer reliance on expert opinions when purchasing 

products with quality levels that are difficult to assess ex-ante) (Ex. 3). 
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members of the proposed Class and California Subclass, suffered financial 

harm when they purchased skin-care products at premium prices that do not, 

and cannot, provide the results Estee Lauder promises. 

15. Estee Lauder sells MAX LS Products to consumers in a different 

manner than less expensive wrinkle creams or moisturizers are sold, which 

enhances the perception that the MAX LS products are superior to other 

similar products. 

16. While lower-priced cosmetic products are available on the shelves of 

drug stores and supermarkets at approximately $15.00 to $30.00 per package, 

the MAX LS Products are sold mainly over counters at high-end department 

stores or online on the Lab Series website for $45-$68. Sales persons who are 

specifically trained by Estee Lauder to sell its MAX LS Products staff the 

counters at retail department stores, where Estee Lauder also provides 

consumers access to product displays and sales brochures that regurgitate the 

same efficacy promises that purportedly distinguish the Max LS products from 

other much less expensive skin care treatments. 

17. Accordingly, instead of making a side-by-side comparison of 

product packaging on store shelves, consumers of the MAX LS Products 

purchase these products almost exclusively by virtue of marketing campaigns 

that reach consumers before they enter the retail outlets and through counter 

sales and advertising displays, such as those pictured below: 

Case 3:14-cv-01064-JM-KSC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/14   Page 6 of 49



 

 7 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

 

 

 

Case 3:14-cv-01064-JM-KSC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/14   Page 7 of 49



 

 8 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

 

18. Indeed, Estee Lauder specifically mentions in its public filings, such 

as its 2013 10-K, that its “in-store displays are designed to attract new 

customers and introduce existing customers to different products in the line.”
15

 

These in-store displays are a crucial part of Estee Lauder’s marketing program, 

conveying superiority over other products.
16

 

19. Plaintiff and other members of the Class and California Subclass 

were exposed to Estee Lauder’s pervasive, deceptive and misleading 

advertising messages and material omissions regarding the efficacy promises 

of the MAX LS Products. 

20. Plaintiff seeks relief in this action individually and on behalf of all 

purchasers in the United States of at least one of the MAX LS Products at any 

time from the date of product launch for each of the particular MAX LS 

Products to the present (the “Class Period”) for violations of the California 

False Advertising Law, California Unfair Competition Law, and the California 

                                              
15

 Estee Lauder’s 2013 10-K SEC Filing at 5. 
16

 See Frank Alpert, Beth Wilson, & Michael T. Elliot Price Signaling: Does it 

Ever Work?, 2.1 J. PROD. & BRAND MGMT. 29 (1993) (Ex. 4). 
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Consumer Legal Remedies Act. Plaintiff also seeks relief individually and on 

behalf of a Subclass of residents of California for violations pursuant to the 

same legal theories.  

THE PARTIES 

21. Plaintiff Behrad Manouchehri is a citizen of the State of California, 

residing in San Diego. Plaintiff purchased the MAX LS Age-Less Face Cream 

from a Macy’s department store located in the Fashion Valley Mall at 7007 

Friars Road, San Diego, CA 92108, at full retail cost
17

 during the Class Period, 

for personal use. 

22. Plaintiff, prior to making his purchase, read and reviewed the 

representations made on the product packing and in reliance upon the efficacy 

claims identified herein and as made by Estee Lauder in in-store 

advertisements, including those appearing in Macy’s, purchased the MAX LS 

Age-Less Face Cream. 

23. Plaintiff also saw, read and relied on these same product efficacy 

statements at the point of sale, including Defendants’ anti-aging claims stating 

the results of a clinical study, in making his decision to purchase the MAX LS 

Age-Less Face Cream at a Macy’s department store located in the Fashion 

Valley Mall. The efficacy statements relied on by Plaintiff included, for 

example, the purported “scientific” benefits based on clinical testing, patents, 

and technologies like “Sirtuin technology” and the exclusive “Molecular Age-

Less Complex” and claims that the MAX LS Products help the skin “boost its 

natural ability to counteract visible signs of aging,”
18

 while also promoting a 

                                              
17

 The Prices Estee Lauder charges for its MAX LS Products are as follows: 

Light Moisture Lotion, $54 for 3.4 oz; Instant Eye Lift, $45 for 0.5 oz; 

Overnight Renewal Serum, $60 for 1 oz; Age-Less Face Cream, $68 for 1.7 oz. 
18

 See MAX LS Product inserts. 
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“noticeably more lifted, firmer and resilient look”
19

 to help “skin look younger, 

longer.”
20

 These false and misleading statements received by Plaintiff were 

material and influenced his decision to purchase a MAX LS Product. As a 

result of his purchase, Plaintiff suffered injury in fact and lost money. Had 

Plaintiff known the truth about Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions, 

he would not have purchased the Defendants’ product. 

24. Defendant, The Estee Lauder Companies Inc. (“Estee Lauder”), is a 

Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in New York, New 

York. 

25. Defendant, Aramis Inc. (“Aramis”), is a Delaware corporation. Upon 

information a belief, Aramis Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Estee 

Lauder Companies, Inc. 

26. Estee Lauder and Aramis are referred to collectively herein as 

“Defendants.” 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

27. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 

1332(d) because there are more than 100 class members and the aggregate 

amount in controversy exceeds $5 million exclusive of interest, fees and costs, 

and at least one Class member is a citizen of a state different from Defendants. 

28. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, venue is proper in this Court because 

Defendants conduct business in this District, Plaintiff made his purchase within 

this District, and a substantial part of the events, omissions and acts giving rise 

to the claims herein occurred in this District.  

 

 

                                              
19

 Id. 
20

 See MAX LS Product line. 
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GENERAL FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS 

Sirtuin and Its Alleged Effects 

29. Sirtuin or SIR2 are a class of proteins found in the skin and 

body that have been implicated in influencing a wide range of cellular 

processes such as aging. 

30. Resveratrol (trans-3, 5, 4’-trihydroxystilbene) is a compound found 

largely in the skins of red grapes and speculated by some to have anti-aging 

properties when ingested. However, there is no accepted scientific link 

between topical Resveratrol and anti-aging properties.   

31. Preliminary studies with Resveratrol have led some scientists to 

speculate that Resveratrol may extend lifespan. Wade, N., New Hints Seen 

That Red Wine May Slow Aging, NY Times (Nov. 30, 2008) (Ex. 5) Several 

studies have concluded that when ingested Resveratrol might activate Sirtuins 

and extend lifespan in various species, from yeast to worms to rodents. 

32. Some studies have shown that there may be a link between 

Resveratrol and Sirtuins; specifically that SIRT1 (but not SIRT2) could be 

directly activated through an allosteric mechanism common to chemically 

diverse Sirtuin-activating compounds. 

33. A 2003 study conducted by a team of Harvard scientists tested the 

effects of Resveratrol on obese mice. The obese mice that were dosed
21

 with 

Resveratrol lived longer than the group of obese mice that were not given any 

Resveratrol. 

34. Moreover, subsequent independent research has failed to replicate 

these results. In every experiment to date, Resveratrol has failed to extend the 

                                              
21

 The mice were given doses of resveratrol far higher than the miniscule 

amounts found in red wine. 

Case 3:14-cv-01064-JM-KSC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/14   Page 11 of 49



 

 12 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

lifespan of lean, genetically normal rodents. Limited human clinical trials have 

been completed. While the reported effects are often positive, Resveratrol may 

have lesser effects in humans. See Micronutrient Information Center: 

Resveratrol, Linus Pauling Institute (Dec. 2012).   

35. Presently, research on Resveratrol and Sirtuin is still in its infancy 

stage and no study has proven the long-term effects of Resveratrol when 

ingested in humans. More importantly, no studies have shown topical 

application of Resveratrol to have any anti-aging effect on humans, rodents, or 

other organisms. 

36. Nevertheless, following the 2003 study, Aramis and Estee Lauder 

made the erroneous representation that putting Resveratrol into topical cream 

will activate Sirtuins and reduce aging and the appearance of aging. 

37. To the contrary, there is no evidence that Resveratrol, or any 

activation of Sirtuin, works on humans at all, much less when delivered 

topically to human skin. Even if Resveratrol activates Sirtuin, there is no 

evidence that doing so also improves the appearance of human skin or reverses 

the signs of aging. 

Estee Lauder’s Misleading Efficacy Claims for MAX LS Products 

38. Estee Lauder’s marketing materials claim that the MAX LS Products 

are “inspired by Sirtuin technology”
22

 and contain “the exclusive Molecular 

Age-Less Complex”
23

so that “skin looks younger, longer.”
24

 Moreover, Estee 

Lauder claims that the MAX LS Products are “the proven anti-age skincare 

system engineered for men” as depicted in the pictures taken at a retail store: 

                                              
22

 See MAX LS Product line and product inserts. 
23

 Id. 
24

 Id. 
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39. Estee Lauder similarly claims throughout its marketing materials 

that MAX LS Products are formulated based on “technology, backed by 

scientific research, and reinforced by years of success in addressing men's 

skincare”
25

 and conveys the misleading message that MAX LS Products can 

“reclaim your younger looking skin”
26

: 

                                              
25

 http://www.labseries.com/get_started/index.tmpl. 
26

 See MAX LS Product line and product inserts. 
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40. The product inserts for the MAX LS Products, which are included in 

the packaging materials, parrot these same anti-aging claims: 

Scientists discovered that our skin contains 

longevity genes call Sirtuins that trigger cells to 

live longer when activated. Inspired by Sirtuin 

technology – the Molecular AGE-LESS Complex 

found in the MAX LS treatment regimen helps to 

prevent and repair the signs of aging. Designed 

specifically for a man’s skin, this new, advanced 

technology works to prolong the skin cell’s life 

resulting in both immediate and long term 

benefits. 

 

41. More specifically, Estee Lauder makes the following claims 

regarding its MAX LS Products: 

 “The proven anti-age skincare system engineered for men.” 

 “Be Age-Less.” 

 “Reclaim your younger looking skin.” 

 “Inspired by Sirtuin technology and the science of skin cell 

longevity, the Molecular Age-Less Complex in Max LS helps 

erase the signs of aging” 

 “Immediately reduces the appearance of lines and wrinkles.” 

 “skin tone is more even, pores are less visible and skin looks 

rejuvenated” 

 “Skin is renewed as it looks firmer and more lifted.” 

 “Visible aging effects appear delayed.” 
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 “Skin looks younger, longer.” 

 “Triggers a time-released multilevel renewal process while you 

sleep to continually increase the rate of cell turnover, revealing 

a smoother appearance in the morning.” 

 “Promotes a noticeably more lifted, firmer and resilient look.” 

 “Helps skin boost its natural ability to counteract visible signs 

of aging so skin looks younger, longer.” 

 “Immediately gives skin a tighter feel around the eye area and 

reduces the appearance of fine lines, wrinkles and crow’s feet.” 

 “Dramatically de-puffs and reduces the look of dark circles.” 

 “Eye area looks smoother and more lifted so skin looks 

younger, longer.” 

42. Estee Lauder also makes the above claims directly on the packaging 

of the MAX LS Products 

itself:
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43. Estee Lauder’s references to scientific research, skin cell behavior 

and skin repair unambiguously convey the misleading message to consumers 

that using the MAX LS Products will prevent and repair the signs of aging. In 

fact, the MAX LS Products cannot provide the promised results. 
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44. In its marketing materials for the MAX LS Products, Estee Lauder 

also provides a “Learn More about MAX LS” video, where consumers learn of 

the purported “genetic research” and “technology” that enables the MAX LS 

Products to provide the promised results. Specifically, Estee Lauder claims that 

the MAX LS Products “. . . help skin look younger, longer. It’s inspired by the 

latest genetic research in Sirtuins genes that impact how cells age. Each 

product in the MAX LS system utilizes Sirtuin science in the molecular age-

less complex to help extend the life span of youthful skin cells, slowing down 

the rate skin appears to age. The result, skin becomes more resistant to the 

visible effects of time.”
27

 

45. Estee Lauder goes as far as to state that after 4 weeks of testing, 

“88% of men experienced lifting and tightening in the eye area,”
28

 “88% of 

men experienced firmer, smoother appearance and renewed skin,”
29

 “90% of 

men saw reduction in the look of lines and wrinkles,”
30

 and after eight weeks 

“98% of men saw boost in hydration.”
31

 

46. The point and theme of these misrepresentations is that Defendants’ 

MAX LS products are worth the steep price premium over other skin creams 

because their innovative “Sirtuin technology” actually extends the life of your 

skin.  Not only is this “technology” unproven, it does not reduce or reverse the 

aging of skin cells. 

                                              
27

 http://www.labseries.com/products/6959/index.tmpl#. 
28

 Id. 
29

 Id. 
30

 Id. 
31

 Id. 
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47. The purported active ingredients in the MAX LS Products are 

ineffectual, which means that the expensive MAX LS Products are no better 

than a generic moisturizer from the local drug store.
32

 

48. To the extent consumers perceived any benefit from MAX LS above 

and beyond an ordinary skin cream, it would be the result the placebo effect. 

Consumers perceive higher-priced products as more effective and report 

greater benefits in comparison to lower-cost alternatives.
33

  Moreover, due to 

the inherently subjective nature of anti-aging “results,” the mere suggestion of 

efficacy bolstered by the faux imprimatur of science is likely sufficient for 

some consumers to observe “results.”
34

 Results based upon the placebo effect 

do no support Defendants’ otherwise false claims, as deception is inherently a 

component of any placebo effect. 

Misleading Use of Statistics 

                                              
32

 Whittemore Declaration. 
33

See Rebecca L. Waber et al, Commercial Features of Placebo and 

Therapeutic Efficacy, 299 JAMA 1016-17 (2008) (noting subjects report 

“higher-priced” placebos as more effective than “lower-priced” placebos, 

despite the lack of an actual difference) (Ex. 6); Baba Shiv et al, Placebo 

Effects of Marketing Actions: Consumers May Get What They Pay For, 42 J. 

MKTNG. RES. (4) 383 (2005) (observing subjects performing better and 

reporting greater efficacy of cold medicine when they used higher-priced 

versions of products that were identical, including branding) (Ex. 7).  
34

See B.L. Marks et al., Psychophysiological Efficacy of a 2% Aminophylline-

Based Thigh Reducing Cream, 31(5) MED. & SCIENCE IN SPORTS EXERCISE 

S218 (1999) (reporting study where subjects believed their thighs had become 

smaller as a result of using a “thigh reducing cream,” while actual 

measurements revealed the product had no effect) (Ex. 8); Nilufer Z. 

Aydinoglu & Aradhna Krishna, Imagining Thin: Why Vanity Sizing Works, J. 

CONS. PSYCH. (2012) (reporting that subjects perceived themselves as smaller 

at the mere suggestion of fitting into clothing one size smaller than their typical 

size) (Ex. 9). 
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49. Estee Lauder compounds this deception with its persistent use of 

scientific terms and phrases to make it appear as though MAX LS products are 

more advanced and more efficacious than other moisturizers. In fact, Estee 

Lauder routinely uses such phrases as “advanced technology,” “scientific 

research,” “clinical improvement,” “clinical study,” and others, in order to 

convince consumers that its MAX LS Products contain unique ingredients 

which have been scientifically designed and tested to provide the promised 

results: “skin that looks younger, longer.”
35

 

50. Estee Lauder also highlights its purported discovery of new 

ingredients and technologies which it claims not only make its products 

unique, but which also support its efficacy claim, such as its “exclusive 

Molecular Age-Less Complex.”
36

 

51. In fact, while the use of such seemingly scientific terms and claims 

of ingredient discovery provide the MAX LS Products with an increased level 

of credibility among unsuspecting consumers, and therefore increased sales, 

the purported scientific-sounding claims are simply part and parcel of Estee 

Lauder’s deceptive and misleading advertising campaign. 

52. Indeed, the clinical studies and other data that Estee Lauder 

represents as supportive of the claimed efficacy results are nothing more than a 

continuation of Defendants’ misleading practices – each of the studies is 

designed specifically to be used in the marketing materials to support the 

claimed efficacy.  Estee Lauder presents the “results” of a purported “clinical 

study” that claims “skin looks younger, longer”
37

 in the following manner in 

the informational video found on its website for LAB Series: 

                                              
35

See MAX LS Product line. 
36

 Id. 
37

 Id. 
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53. These screen shots from the informational video purportedly state 

the “results” of the “clinical study” of MAX LS, wherein after four weeks of 
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testing, “88% of men experienced lifting and tightening in the eye area,”
38

 

“88% of men experienced firmer, smoother appearance and renewed skin,”
39

 

“90% of men saw reduction in the look of lines and wrinkles,”
40

 and after eight 

weeks “98% of men saw boost in hydration.”
41

 

54. Accordingly, the claims made by this statistical presentation of the 

“results” of the “clinical study” is that 88 percent of consumers using MAX LS 

Products for four weeks can expect to see “lifting and tightening in the eye 

area” and a “firmer, smoother appearance and renewed skin” while 90 percent 

of consumers can expect to see a “reduction in the look of lines and wrinkles” 

and 98 percent of consumers can expect to see a “boost in hydration.” 

55. Because nothing in the MAX LS Products can lift and/or tighten the 

eye area, promote a “firmer, smoother appearance and renew skin,” or reduce 

lines and wrinkles, this specific efficacy claim is deceptive and/or misleading. 

The Effects of Defendants’ Use of Scientific Data and Discovery 

56. Making specific efficacy promises based upon “scientific” data and 

discovery further demonstrates that Defendants’ claims are not mere puffery.  

Estee Lauder advertises that the MAX LS Products are “the proven anti-age 

skincare system engineered for men.”
42

  Indeed, if the MAX LS Products 

actually lift and/or tighten the eye area, promote a “firmer, smoother 

appearance and renew skin,”
43

 reduce lines and wrinkles, or provided the other 

                                              
38

 http://www.labseries.com/products/6959/index.tmpl#. 
39

 Id. 
40

Id. 
41

Id. 
42

 See picture, supra at 11. 
43

 See MAX LS Product inserts. 
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age-negating effects Defendants represent those products have, they would 

trigger regulation by the Food and Drug Administration as a drug.
44

 

57. Estee Lauder relies on promises of specific results purportedly 

supported by the indicia of scientific reliability and discovery because such 

science-oriented promises and support for its efficacy claims make their 

efficacy promises more plausible to consumers. Those consumers are then 

more likely to purchase the high-priced MAX LS Products.   

58. Even if one or more of Estee Lauder’s claims is literally true, when 

viewed in their totality, the promises made by Estee Lauder regarding the 

efficacy of the MAX LS Products are nevertheless materially misleading to the 

average consumer and are therefore actionable. 

59. In addition, regardless of whether the actual “clinical” studies or 

other tests referenced by Estee Lauder produced the claimed results, the 

references to such “clinical” studies or tests as being indicative of results for 

consumers generally in actual use of the MAX LS Products is misleading and 

deceptive. Indeed, these “data” are part and parcel of Estee Lauder’s false, 

misleading, and/or deceptive advertising for its MAX LS Products. 

60. Moreover, the active ingredients in the MAX LS Products are not 

effective and certainly have not been “proven,” which means the expensive 

MAX LS Products are no better than a generic moisturizer from a local drug 

store. 

Internet and Television Marketing 

61. Estee Lauder’s Internet marketing for its MAX LS Products 

includes, among other things, video presentations, statistical data, and a 

Facebook page. Many of its commercials and promotional videos are also 

readily accessible on youtube.com and other third-party websites. Each of 

                                              
44

 FD&C Act, 201(g). 
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these sources repeat the same central marketing theme as the other MAX LS 

advertisements, and provides consumers access 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 

to Estee Lauder’s deceptive advertising campaign for the MAX LS Products. 

Print Media and Sales Brochures 

62. Estee Lauder also markets its MAX LS Products in print media, 

including advertisements in widely circulated magazines and newspapers such 

as the New York Times, Male Critique, Men’s Health, and Allure, among 

others. 

63. The specific dates and places of publication of each of Estee 

Lauder’s advertisements for the MAX LS Products are in Estee Lauder’s 

possession, custody or control. 

64. Some of the examples of Estee Lauder’s magazine advertising 

include the following, which repeat the same efficacy claims as the online and 

in-store marketing materials: 
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65. Estee Lauder’s sales brochures, which are made available at 

department stores where the MAX LS Products are sold, echo the same 

message as the other forms of Estee Lauder’s marketing. 

Sales Representatives 

66. Estee Lauder provides training and disseminates uniform 

information to “Estee Lauder Beauty Advisors” regarding its MAX LS 

Products. These sales representatives are paid and extensively trained by Estee 

Lauder to parrot and reinforce the same false promises as contained in Estee 

Lauder’s other forms of advertising to all potential customers. Estee Lauder 

even sends its marketing and sales executives into the field to meet with 

consumers and key retailers and to consult with Estee Lauder Beauty Advisors 

at each retail location to ensure the marketing message is consistent at all 

points of sale. 

The Results of Estee Lauder’s Deceptive Conduct 

67. Estee Lauder’s uniform marketing campaign leaves consumers with 

the mistaken belief that its MAX LS Products are uniquely able to provide 

certain permanent age-negating effects on human skin. Specifically, Estee 
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Lauder advertises in retail stores that the MAX LS Products are “the proven 

anti-age skincare system engineered for men.”
45

 

68. In addition to the material misrepresentations as described herein, 

Defendants’ conduct is likewise actionable based on their material omissions, 

which similarly induced Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and 

Subclass to purchase the MAX LS Products. 

69. For example, Defendants have failed to disclose, inter alia, the 

following: 

 That the active ingredients in MAX LS Products that 

purportedly distinguish them from other moisturizers are not 

effective and do not provide the promised benefits; 

 

 That none of the MAX LS Products can “help reduce the signs 

of aging”; “immediately reduce the appearance of lines and 

wrinkles”; promote “a noticeably more lifted, firmer and 

resilient look”; “dramatically de-puff[] and reduce[] the look of 

dark circles”; or “help[] skin look younger, longer.” 

 

 The Defendants references to results from “clinical” and other 

“tests” and “studies” will not translate to actual results for 

consumers; 

 

 That Defendants’ “clinical studies” are not scientific and are 

instead designed to support Defendants’ marketing materials. 

 

                                              
45

 See picture, supra at 11. 
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 Topical application of “Sirtuin technology” and/or Resveratrol 

has not been shown to (and does not) reduce the signs of aging. 

 

 Topical application of “Sirtuin technology” and/or Resveratrol 

has not been shown to (and does not) help reduce lines and 

wrinkles. 

 

 Topical application of “Sirtuin technology” and/or Resveratrol 

has not been shown to (and does not) provide any benefit to the 

skin. 

 

70. Estee Lauder is in a position to actually know, or should know, that 

Resveratrol or “Sirtuin technology” does not deliver the promised results and 

that its MAX LS Products do not contain any ingredients or combination of 

ingredients that can repair past damage, effect a dramatic reduction in the 

visible signs of aging, promote noticeably more lifted, firmer and resilient skin, 

or provide any of the other promised permanent results. Estee Lauder fails to 

disclose that its MAX LS Products do not provide the permanent results as 

promised. 

71. Until such time as Estee Lauder ceases to engage in deceptive and 

misleading advertising of the MAX LS Products, Plaintiff and the other 

members of the Class and Subclass will continue to be harmed. 

72. As a result of the aging population, consumers are increasingly 

susceptible to such deceptive marketing and advertising. 

73. Estee Lauder has succeeded in its deceit and has in fact enjoyed 

substantial profits from its deceptive campaigns. Such profits, if any, would 
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not have been nearly as large but for Estee Lauder’s deceptive and misleading 

MAX LS marketing and advertising campaign. 

74. Estee Lauder sets the price and charges a premium for its MAX LS 

Products. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and Subclass would not 

have paid premium prices for the MAX LS Products – or would not have 

bought them at all – had they not been exposed to Estee Lauder’s false or 

deceptive advertising about the MAX LS Products and had, instead, known the 

truth regarding Estee Lauder’s deceptive marketing promises and omissions 

relating thereto. 

75. Moreover, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and Subclass 

believed the MAX LS Products would provide the promised age-negating 

benefits as detailed herein. In reality, although Plaintiff and the other members 

of the Class and Subclass paid premium prices for these purportedly unique 

MAX LS Product benefits, they did not get what they paid for. Instead, the 

MAX LS Products that Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and 

Subclass purchased did not provide the promised age-negating results. 

76. As a result, and because of Estee Lauder’s deceptive marketing, 

Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and Subclass have been harmed as 

a result of their purchases of the MAX LS Products. 

77. Without knowing the truth about the lack of efficacy of the MAX LS 

Products, Plaintiff and the other member of the Class and Subclass paid 

premiums for MAX LS Products and/or received totally worthless products. 

THE DECLARATION OF JERRY WHITTEMORE 

78. Jerry Whittemore received his doctorate from University of Southern 

California in 1959 and has been a California Registered Pharmacist since then. 

Since approximately 1964, he has been a Supervisor of Drug Testing, a 

Manager and Director of Research and Development and a Vice President of 
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Science. In the last 17 years, he has been the President of a 

Cosmetic/Pharmaceutical research laboratory in Los Angeles, California. 

79. As an expert in pharmaceutical chemistry and biochemistry, as well 

as a research director for a large prescription dermatology firm, Stiefel (a 

division of Glasco), he has developed many dermatologicals. 

80. Mr. Whittemore has studied at length the ingredients, advertising, 

promotion, and claims of Estee Lauder’s MAX LS products. He has also 

reviewed scientific literature and studies regarding “Sirtuin” technology to 

inform his opinions. 

81. Mr. Whittemore opines there is no good and accepted scientific 

evidence that supports Estee Lauder’s claim that “Sirtuin technology” 

purportedly found in its MAX LS Products has any impact on the skin or aging 

process when applied topically. Exhibit 10 at ¶4. 

82. Mr. Whittemore also found that Estee Lauder’s MAX LS Products 

are not a “proven anti-age skin system” as advertised.  Exhibit 10 at ¶4.  He 

further opines that there is no evidence that “sirtuin technology” purportedly 

found in the MAX LS Products has any positive impact on aging or skin above 

and beyond the impact provided by garden variety moisturizing cream. Exhibit 

10 at ¶4. 

83. Mr. Whittemore points to seven studies which reinforce his opinions, 

explaining these studies are survey papers typical of those supporting topical 

sirtuin mitigators and/or oral administrated Resveratrol. None of the studies, 

however, actually deal with topical application of Resveratrol.  He opines that 

in no situation can these studies be deemed “proven anti-age skin science” as 

suggested by Estee Lauder. Exhibit 10 at ¶4. 

84. Based on his decades of experience in the field and his review of the 

relevant scientific literature, Mr. Whittemore concludes that Estee Lauder’s 
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statements for its MAX LS Product line are false and deceptive. Exhibit 10 at 

¶4. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

85.   Plaintiff brings this class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a), 

(b)(1), (b)(2) and (b)(3) on behalf of the following nationwide consumer Class: 

All purchasers of any MAX LS Product in the United 

States. Excluded from the Class are Defendants, their 

parents, subsidiaries and affiliates, their directors and 

officers and members of their immediate families; 

also excluded are any federal, state or local 

governmental entities, any judicial officers presiding 

over this action and the members of their immediate 

family and judicial staff, and any juror assigned to 

this action. 

 

86. Plaintiff also seeks to represent a California Subclass defined as: 

All residents of California who purchased any MAX 

LS Product. Excluded from the Subclass are 

Defendants, their parents, subsidiaries and affiliates, 

their directors and officers and members of their 

immediate families; also excluded are any federal, 

state or local governmental entities, any judicial 

officers presiding over this action and the members 

of their immediate family and judicial staff, and any 

juror assigned to this action. 

87. Members of the Class and the California Subclass are so numerous 

that their individual joinder herein is impractical. Members of each of these 

Case 3:14-cv-01064-JM-KSC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/14   Page 38 of 49



 

 39 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

classes number at least in the tens of thousands. The precise number of Class 

and California Subclass Members and their identities are unknown to Plaintiff 

at this time but will be determined through discovery.  

88. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all Class and 

California Subclass Members and predominate over questions affecting only 

individual Class Members. Common legal and factual questions include, but 

are not limited to: 

 

a. Whether Defendants advertise or market the MAX LS 

Products in a way that is false or misleading; 

 

b. Whether Defendants concealed from Plaintiff and the other 

members of the Class and California Subclass that their MAX 

LS Products do not provide the promised results; 

 

c. Whether, by the misconduct set forth in this Complaint, 

Defendants engaged in unfair, fraudulent or unlawful business 

with respect to advertising, marketing and sales of their MAX 

LS Products; 

 

  

d. Whether Defendants violated the Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 

17500, et seq; Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.; and/or 

Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, et seq.; 

 

e. Whether, as a result of Defendants’ misconduct as alleged 

herein, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and 
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California Subclass are entitled to restitution, injunctive and/or 

monetary relief and, if so, the amount and nature of such relief. 

 

89. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the other members of 

the Class and California Subclass, as all members of the respective classes are 

similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct. Plaintiff has no interests 

antagonistic to the interests of the other members of the Class and California 

Subclass. Plaintiff and all members of the Class and California Subclass have 

sustained economic injury arising out of Defendants’ violations of common 

and statutory law as alleged herein. 

90. Plaintiff is an adequate representative of the Class and California 

Subclass because his interests do not conflict with the interests of the Class 

Members he seeks to represent, he has retained counsel competent and 

experienced in prosecuting class actions, and he intends to prosecute this 

action vigorously. The interests of Class and California Subclass members will 

be fairly and adequately protected by Plaintiff and his counsel. 

91. The class mechanism is superior to other available means for the fair 

and efficient adjudication of the claims of Plaintiff and the members of the 

Class and California Subclass. Each individual member of the respective 

classes may lack the resources to undergo the burden and expense of individual 

prosecution of the complex and extensive litigation necessary to establish 

Defendants’ liability. Individualized litigation increases the delay and expense 

to all parties and multiplies the burden on the judicial system presented by the 

complex legal and factual issues of this case. Individualized litigation also 

presents a potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments. In contrast, the 

class action device presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the 

benefits of single adjudication, economy of scale, and comprehensive 
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supervision by a single court on the issue of Defendants’ liability. Class 

treatment of the liability issues will ensure that all claims and claimants are 

before this Court for consistent adjudication of the liability issues. 

 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

(California False Advertising Law –  

Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, et seq.  

on behalf of the Class and the California State Subclass)  

 

92. Plaintiff repeats the allegations contained in the above paragraphs as 

if fully set forth herein. 

93. Defendants engaged in unlawful conduct under California Business 

& Professions Code § 17500, et seq., by marketing MAX LS Products as 

possessing properties they do not have. More specifically, and as set forth 

above, Defendants misrepresented that the MAX LS Products can, among 

other things, “help reduce the signs of aging”;
46

 “immediately reduce the 

appearance of lines and wrinkles”;
47

 “promote[] a noticeably more lifted, 

firmer and resilient look”;
48

 “dramatically de-puff[] and reduce[] the look of 

dark circles”;
49

 “help[] skin look younger, longer”
50

 or provide any of the other 

promised age-negating results as described herein. Plaintiff and the Class 

reasonably relied upon Defendants’ material representations and/or omissions 

made in violation of California Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq. 

94. Defendants also failed to disclose material facts regarding the 

efficacy of the MAX LS Products and the purported supporting scientific 

references and clinical tests as described herein. 

                                              
46

 See MAX LS Product inserts. 
47

 Id. 
48

 Id. 
49

 Id. 
50

 See MAX LS Product line. 
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95. Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions constitute an 

unconscionable commercial practice, deception, fraud, false pretense, and/or 

misrepresentation of material facts.  

96. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violations, Plaintiff 

the Class and California State Subclass suffered an ascertainable loss directly, 

foreseeably, and proximately caused by Defendants’ misrepresentation and/or 

omissions because they were induced to purchase and/or paid a price premium 

due to the advertising, marketing, packaging, labeling, and other promotion of 

MAX LS Products. Because of Defendants’ misrepresentations and/or 

omissions, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class and Subclass did not 

receive the benefits they believed they had purchased. 

97. Plaintiff is informed and believes that as a further direct and 

proximate result of the marketing described above, Defendants have received 

from members of the Class and Subclass money obtained through their 

violation of California Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq., which 

Defendants continue to hold for their sole benefit. 

98. Accordingly, Plaintiff on behalf of himself and all others similarly 

situated, seeks equitable relief in the form of an order requiring Defendants to 

refund to Plaintiff, and members of the Class and Subclass all monies they paid 

for MAX LS Products and an order requiring Defendants to cease representing 

that MAX LS Products possess anti-aging benefits above and beyond that or an 

ordinary moisturizing cream. 

 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

(California Unfair Competition Law – 

Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code§ 17200, et seq. 

on behalf of the Class and California State Subclass) 

99. Plaintiff repeats the allegations contained in the above paragraphs as 

if fully set forth herein. 
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100. Defendants engaged in unlawful conduct under California Business 

& Professions Code § 17200, et seq., by marketing MAX LS Products as 

possessing properties they do not have. More specifically, and as set forth 

above, Defendants misrepresented that the MAX LS Products can, among 

other things, “help reduce the signs of aging”;
51

 “immediately reduce the 

appearance of lines and wrinkles”;
52

 “promote[] a noticeably more lifted, 

firmer and resilient look”;
53

 “dramatically de-puff[] and reduce[] the look of 

dark circles”;
54

 “help[] skin look younger, longer”
55

 or provide any of the other 

promised age-negating results as described herein. Plaintiff and the Class 

reasonably relied upon Defendants’ material representations and/or omissions. 

101. Defendants’ conduct is unlawful in that it violates the False 

Advertising Law, California Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq. 

102. Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions constitute an 

unconscionable commercial practice, deception, fraud, false pretense, and/or 

misrepresentation of material facts. The harm arising from Defendants’ 

conduct outweighs any legitimate benefit Defendants have derived from the 

conduct. 

103. The facts not disclosed by Defendants to Plaintiff are material in that 

a reasonable consumer would have considered them important in deciding 

whether to purchase MAX LS.  Had Plaintiff and members of the Class and 

Subclass known MAX LS is no more effective than an ordinary moisturizer, 

they would not have purchased MAX LS or would have paid considerably less 

for their purchase. 

                                              
51

 See MAX LS Product inserts. 
52

 Id. 
53

 Id. 
54

 Id. 
55

 See MAX LS Product line. 
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104. Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions are likely to mislead a 

reasonable consumer. 

105. Plaintiff relied on Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions. 

106. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself, members of the Class, and Subclass, 

seeks reimbursement of monies they paid for MAX LS. Additionally, Plaintiff 

seeks equitable and injunctive relief on behalf of himself and the Class 

Members pursuant to Cal. Business & Professions Code § 17203. 

 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Violation of California Consumer Legal Remedies Act, 

California Civil Code § 1750, et seq. 

on behalf of the Class and Subclass, seeking injunctive relief only) 

107. Plaintiff repeats the allegations contained in the above paragraphs as 

if fully set forth herein. 

108. Plaintiff brings this cause of action on behalf of himself and on 

behalf of all other members of the Class and Subclass.   

109. Plaintiff is seeking only injunctive relief. 

110. Defendants are “persons” as defined by California Civil Code § 

1761(c). 

111. Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass are “consumers” 

within the meaning of California Civil Code § 1761(d). 

112. Defendants’ marketing of MAX LS Products as possessing 

properties they do not have. More specifically, and as set forth above, 

Defendants misrepresented that the MAX LS Products can, among other 

things, “help reduce the signs of aging”;
56

 “immediately reduce the appearance 

of lines and wrinkles”;
57

 “promote[] a noticeably more lifted, firmer and 

                                              
56

 See MAX LS Product inserts. 
57

 Id. 
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resilient look”;
58

 “dramatically de-puff[] and reduce[] the look of dark 

circles”;
59

 “help[] skin look younger, longer”
60

 or provide any of the other 

promised age-negating results as described herein. 

113. Defendants violated and continue to violate the Act by engaging in 

the following practices proscribed by California Civil Code §1770(a) in 

transactions with Plaintiff and the Class which were intended to result in, and 

did result in, the sale of the MAX LS Products: 

(5) Representing that [the Products] have . . . approval, 

characteristics, . . . uses [and] benefits . . . which [they do] not 

have . . . . 

* * * 

(7) Representing that [the Products] are of a particular standard, 

quality or grade . . . if [they are] of another. 

* * * 

(9) Advertising goods . . . with intent not to sell them as advertised. 

* * * 

(16) Representing that [the Products have] been supplied in accordance 

with a previous representation when [they have] not. 

 

114. Defendants’ unfair and deceptive acts occurred repeatedly and were 

capable of deceiving a substantial portion of the purchasing public. 

115. The facts not disclosed by Defendants to Plaintiff are material in that 

a reasonable consumer would have considered them important in deciding 

whether or not to purchase MAX LS or to pay less for that product. Had 

Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass known MAX LS products are 

                                              
58

 Id. 
59

 Id. 
60

 See MAX LS Product line. 
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no more effective than ordinary moisturizing creams, they would not have 

purchased MAX LS Products or would have paid considerably less for their 

purchase. 

116. Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions are likely to mislead a 

reasonable consumer. 

117. Plaintiff relied on Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions. 

118. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ unfair or deceptive 

acts or practices, Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass have 

suffered and will continue to suffer actual damages. 

119. Also, pursuant to §1782 of the Act, Plaintiffs notified Defendants in 

writing by certified mail of the particular violations of §1770 of the Act and 

demanded that they rectify the problems associated with the actions detailed 

above and give notice to all affected consumers of their intent to so act.   

120. Copies of the letters are attached hereto as Exhibit 11.   

121. If Defendants fail to rectify or agree to rectify the problems 

associated with the actions detailed above and give notice to all affected 

consumers within 30 days of the date of written notice pursuant to §1782 of the 

Act, Plaintiffs will amend this complaint to add claims for actual, punitive and 

statutory damages, as appropriate. 

122. Defendants’ conduct is fraudulent, wanton, and malicious. 

123. Pursuant to §1780(d) of the Act, attached hereto is the affidavit 

showing that this action has been commenced in the proper forum. 

124. Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass care entitled to 

injunctive relief. Accordingly, Plaintiff seeks an Order enjoining Defendants 

from engaging in the deceptive practices alleged herein. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the Class and 

California Subclass requests the following relief: 

A. An order that this action may be maintained as a Class Action under 

Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, that Plaintiff be 

appointed Class representative for the Class and Subclass and that 

Plaintiff’s counsel be appointed as counsel for the Class and 

Subclass; 

B. A permanent injunction against Defendants, restraining, preventing 

and enjoining Defendants from engaging in the illegal practices 

alleged; 

C. An order requiring Defendants to disgorge the profits wrongfully 

obtained through the use of their illegal practices; 

D. Actual damages; 

E. An award of attorneys’ fees; 

F. An award of the costs of suit reasonably incurred by Plaintiff and his 

counsel; 

G. An award of interest, including prejudgment interest, at the legal rate, 

and; 

H. Such other and further relief as the Court deems necessary and 

appropriate. 
 
 

DATED:  April 28, 2014  Respectfully submitted,  

 By: Todd  D. Carpenter________ 

Todd D. Carpenter (CA SBN 234464) 

CARPENTER LAW GROUP 
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402 West Broadway, 29
th

 Floor 

San Diego, California 92101 

P. 619.756.6994 

F. 619.756.6991 

Todd@Carpenterlawyers.com 

 

John Zaremba (pro hac pending) 
ZAREMBA BROWNELL & BROWN, 

PLLC 

40 Wall Street, 27
th

 Floor 

New York, NY 10005 

Telephone: (212) 400-7224 

jzaremba@zbblaw.com 

 

Brian D. Penny (pro hac pending) 

Douglas J. Bench, Jr. (pro hac pending) 
GOLDMAN SCARLATO KARON & 

PENNY, P.C. 

101 E. Lancaster Avenue, Suite 204 

Wayne, PA   19087 

Telephone: (484) 342-0700 

penny@gskplaw.com 

bench@gskplaw.com 

 

Edwin J. Kilpela, Jr. (pro hac pending) 

Benjamin J. Sweet  (pro hac pending) 

CARLSON LYNCH LTD 
115 Federal Street, Suite 210 

Pittsburgh, PA 15212 

Telephone: (412)322.9243 

Ekilpela@carlsonlynch.com 

Bsweet@carlsonlynch.com 

 

Counsel for Plaintiff and the Proposed Class 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

 PLAINTIFF, ON BEHALF OF HIMSELF AND ALL OTHERS 

SIMILARLY SITUATED, HEREBY DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY OF 

ALL CLAIMS SO TRIABLE IN THE ABOVE REFERENCED MATTER. 

 

DATED:  April 28, 2014  Respectfully submitted,  

  

 By: Todd  D. Carpenter________ 

Todd D. Carpenter (CA SBN 234464) 

CARPENTER LAW GROUP 

402 West Broadway, 29
th

 Floor 

San Diego, California 92101 

P. 619.756.6994 

F. 619.756.6991 

Todd@Carpenterlawyers.com 
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402 West Broadway, 29

th
 Floor | San Diego, California 92101 | P. 619.347.3517 | Web: Carpenterlawyers.com 

 
April 28, 2014 

       
VIA CERTIFIED  U.S. MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

 
The Estee Lauder Companies Inc. 
C/o The Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc. 
2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400 
Wilmington, DE 19808 
 
 Re: Notice of Violation of California Consumer Legal Remedies Act 

 
The Estee Lauder Companies Inc.: 
 

Please be advised that we represent Behrad Manouchehri, who purchased Estee Lauder’s 
MAX LS Age-Less Face Cream. We send this letter under the California Consumers Legal 
Remedies Act, California Civil Code Section 1750 et seq. (“CLRA”), to notify The Estee Lauder 
Companies Inc. that its sale of Lab Series MAX LS products with illegal misrepresentations on 
the product packaging violates the CLRA and to demand Estee Lauder rectify its violations 
within 30 days of receipt of this letter.   
 

Estee Lauder has sold false and deceptively labeled Lab Series products to Mr. 
Manouchehri and other consumers in violation of California Civil Code § 17500 and § 17200. 
Estee Lauder has misrepresented to Mr. Manouchehri and consumers that MAX LS products 
utilize resveratrol, “sirtuin technology” and the “molecular age-less complex” to “erase the signs 
of aging” (among other claims) when, in fact, resveratrol, “sirtuin technology,” and this 
“molecular age-less complex” do not provide the benefits promised. As a result, Mr. 
Manouchehri and other consumers have received a product that is something other than what is 
represented on MAX LS packaging and through Estee Lauder’s extensive marketing campaign.  
 

Accordingly, we demand that within thirty (30) days of receiving this letter, Estee Lauder 
agree to (1) refrain from engaging in the deceptive practices described above at any time in the 
future; and (2) return all money Estee Lauder’s customers paid for MAX LS. If Estee Lauder 
refuses to provide the demanded relief within thirty (30) days, we will seek compensatory and 
punitive damages, statutory damages, injunctive relief, restitution, and any other appropriate 
equitable relief.   
 

We hope to confer with you to resolve these violations. I look forward to hearing from 
you. 

Very Truly Yours, 
 

/s/ Todd D. Carpenter 

Todd D. Carpenter 
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402 West Broadway, 29

th
 Floor | San Diego, California 92101 | P. 619.347.3517 | Web: Carpenterlawyers.com 

 
April 28, 2014 

 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

 
Aramis Inc. 
C/o The Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc. 
2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400 
Wilmington, DE 19808 

 
 Re: Notice of Violation of California Consumer Legal Remedies Act 

Aramis Inc.: 
 

Please be advised that we represent Behrad Manouchehri, who purchased Aramis Inc. 
and Estee Lauder’s MAX LS Age-Less Face Cream. We send this letter under the California 
Consumers Legal Remedies Act, California Civil Code Section 1750 et seq. (“CLRA”), to notify 
Aramis Inc. that its sale of Lab Series MAX LS products with illegal misrepresentations on the 
product packaging violates the CLRA and to demand Aramis Inc. rectify its violations within 30 
days of receipt of this letter.   

 
Aramis Inc. has sold false and deceptively labeled Lab Series products to Mr. 

Manouchehri and other consumers in violation of California Civil Code § 17500 and § 17200. 
Aramis Inc. has misrepresented to Mr. Manouchehri and consumers that MAX LS products 
utilize resveratrol, “sirtuin technology” and the “molecular age-less complex” to “erase the signs 
of aging” (among other claims) when, in fact, resveratrol, “sirtuin technology,” and this 
“molecular age-less complex” do not provide the benefits promised. As a result, Mr. 
Manouchehri and other consumers have received a product that is something other than what is 
represented on MAX LS packaging and through Aramis Inc. and Estee Lauder’s extensive 
marketing campaign.  

 
Accordingly, we demand that within thirty (30) days of receiving this letter, Aramis Inc. 

agree to (1) refrain from engaging in the deceptive practices described above at any time in the 
future; and (2) return all money Aramis Inc. and Estee Lauder’s customers paid for MAX LS. If 
Aramis Inc. refuses to provide the demanded relief within thirty (30) days, we will seek 
compensatory and punitive damages, statutory damages, injunctive relief, restitution, and any 
other appropriate equitable relief.   

 
We hope to confer with you to resolve these violations. I look forward to hearing from 

you. 
Very Truly Yours, 

 
/s/ Todd D. Carpenter 

Todd D. Carpenter 
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402 West Broadway, 29

th
 Floor | San Diego, California 92101 | P. 619.347.3517 | Web: Carpenterlawyers.com 

 
April 28, 2014 

 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

 
Fabrizio Freda 
The Estee Lauder Companies, Inc. 
767 Fifth Avenue 
New York, NY 10153 
 
 Re: Notice of Violation of California Consumer Legal Remedies Act 

 
Dear Mr. Freda: 
 

Please be advised that we represent Behrad Manouchehri, who purchased Estee Lauder’s 
MAX LS Age-Less Face Cream. We send this letter under the California Consumers Legal 
Remedies Act, California Civil Code Section 1750 et seq. (“CLRA”), to notify Estee Lauder 
Companies, Inc. that its sale of Lab Series MAX LS products with illegal misrepresentations on 
the product packaging violates the CLRA and to demand Estee Lauder rectify its violations 
within 30 days of receipt of this letter.   
 

Estee Lauder has sold false and deceptively labeled Lab Series products to Mr. 
Manouchehri and other consumers in violation of California Civil Code § 17500 and § 17200. 
Estee Lauder has misrepresented to Mr. Manouchehri and consumers that MAX LS products 
utilize resveratrol, “sirtuin technology” and the “molecular age-less complex” to “erase the signs 
of aging” (among other claims) when, in fact, resveratrol, “sirtuin technology,” and this 
“molecular age-less complex” do not provide the benefits promised.  

 
As a result, Mr. Manouchehri and other consumers have received a product that is 

something other than what is represented on MAX LS packaging and through Estee Lauder’s 
extensive marketing campaign.  

 
Accordingly, we demand that within thirty (30) days of receiving this letter, Estee Lauder 

agree to (1) refrain from engaging in the deceptive practices described above at any time in the 
future; and (2) return all money Estee Lauder’s customers paid for MAX LS. If Estee Lauder 
refuses to provide the demanded relief within thirty (30) days, we will seek compensatory and 
punitive damages, statutory damages, injunctive relief, restitution, and any other appropriate 
equitable relief.  
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We hope to confer with you to resolve these violations. I look forward to hearing from 

you. 
Very Truly Yours, 

 
/s/ Todd D. Carpenter 

Todd D. Carpenter 
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CARPENTER LAW GROUP 

Todd D. Carpenter (CA SBN 234464) 

402 West Broadway, 29
th

 Floor 

San Diego, California 92101 

P. 619.756.6994 

F. 619.756.6991 

Todd@Carpenterlawyers.com 

 

Additional Counsel at signature; 

 

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Proposed Class 
 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

 

 I, Todd D. Carpenter, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice before all of the courts of 

the State of California.  I am the principle and owner of the Carpenter Law 

Group, and the counsel of record for Plaintiff in the above-entitled action 

2. Defendants The ESTEE LAUDER COMPANIES, INC. and 

ARAMIS, INC. have done and are doing business in the Southern District of 

California.  Such business includes the marketing, distributing, and sale of its 

 
BEHRAD MANOUCHEHRI, on 

behalf of himself and all others 

similarly situated, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

 vs. 

 

THE ESTEE LAUDER COMPANIES 

INC. and ARAMIS INC., 

  

 Defendants.                                                            

 
 

 
Case No.  __________ 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 
DECLARATION OF TODD D. 
CARPENTER REGARDING 
JURISDICTION 
 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMAND 
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Lab Series MAX LS products.   

3. Additionally, Plaintiff Behrad Manouchehri resides in the County of 

San Diego and his purchase of the products as set forth in the Complaint 

occurred in San Diego County.  

 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 

California that the foregoing is true and correct.   

 

 

DATED:  April 28, 2014    

  

 By: Todd  D. Carpenter________ 

Todd D. Carpenter (CA SBN 234464) 

CARPENTER LAW GROUP 

402 West Broadway, 29
th

 Floor 

San Diego, California 92101 

P. 619.756.6994 

F. 619.756.6991 

Todd@Carpenterlawyers.com 
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